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P R OCEETDTI NG S

MR. GAUNA:

My name®"s Mike Gauna.
I"m a mine engineer and an
accident iInvestigator with the
Mine Safety & Health
Administration, an agency of
the United States Department
of Labor. With me 1s Derek
Baxter from the Solicitor~™s
Office and Sherrie Hayashi,
Utah Commissioner of Labor.
We"ll be conducting the
questioning today.

I, together with other
government i1nvestigators and
specialists, have been
assigned to Investigate the
conditions, events and
circumstances surrounding the
fatalities that occurred at
the Crandall Canyon Mine 1i1n
Utah 1n August of 2007. The

investigation 1s being
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conducted by MSHA under
Section 103(a) of the Federal
Mine Safety & Health Act and
Utah Commission of Labor. We
appreciate your assistance 1n
this Investigation.

After the i1nvestigation
is complete, MSHA will issue a
public report detailing the
nature and causes of the
fatalities 1n the hope that
greater awareness about the
causes of accidents can reduce
this occurrence 1n the future.
Information obtained through
witness interviews 1is
frequently 1ncluded 1n these
reports. That®"s why your
statement may also be used 1n
other proceedings.

You may have a personal
representative present during
the taking of the statement
and may consult with the

representative at any time.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Your statement 1s completely
voluntary. You may refuse to
answer any question and you
may terminate your i1interview
at any time or request a break
at any time. Since this 1s
not an adversarial proceeding,
formal Cross Examination will
not be permitted. However,
your personal representative
may ask clarifying questions
as appropriate.

A court reporter will
record your iInterview. Please
speak loudly and clearly. 1T
you do not understand a
question asked, please ask me
to rephrase 1t. Please answer
each question as fTully as you
can, 1tncluding any information
you have learned from someone
else.

I would like to thank
you 1n advance for your

appearance here. We

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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appreciate your assistance 1n
this Investigation. Your
cooperation 1s critical 1In
making the nation®s mines
safer.

After we have finished
asking questions, you will
have an opportunity to make a
statement and provide us with
any other information that you
believe to be important. 1T
at any time after the
interview you recall any
additional 1nformation that
you believe might be useful,
please contact Richard Gates
at the telephone number or
e-mail address provided.

Ms. Kirkwood, would you

swear In the witness?

PHIL GORDON, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY

SWORN,

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Ms. Kirkwood, are you
empowered as a notary iIn the
State of Utah?

MS. KIRKWOOD:

I am.

MR. GAUNA:

When does your
commission expire?

MS. KIRKWOOD:

August 15th, 2008.
MR. GAUNA:

Have you sworn In Mr.
Gordon?

MS. KIRKWOOD:

10

I have.
BY MR. GAUNA:
Q. Is 1t okay to use Phil or ---7?
A . Phil®"s fine.
Q. Phil®"s fine. Okay . Phil, do

you have any questions about the

interview process as | described 1t?
A. No.
Q. And do you have a personal

representative with you here today?

A . Yes.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q- Okay.

MR. GAUNA:

Would your personal
representative 1dentify
himself by name and address
for the record?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Thomas C. Means,
Crowell & Moring, L.L.P.,
Washington, D.C. And I*d like
to clarify that, as Mr. Gordon
and I have discussed, I"m the
company®"s attorney, not his
personal attorney. He has the
right to have anyone he wants
here with him, and he"s asked
me to be here, and I"m here at
his request.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q.- Just to clarify that one more
time, are you aware that your
representative may have a conflict of
interest In representing you while
being provided by someone else, such

as the company?

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. Okay.
MR. GAUNA:

And would you again,
Mr. Means, state for the
record that you represent the
mine operator in these
matters?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

That®"s correct.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. And with this understanding,
do you still want this person as your
representative?

A Yes.

Q. Okay. Very good. Phil, are
you appearing here today voluntarily?
A I am.

Q. Okay. Tell me how many years
of mining experience you have.

A Eight, eight and a half.

Q. Eight and a half years. Okay.
And please give me a brief
description of your coal mine

employment history, places you have

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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worked.

A I worked for White Oak Mining
starting 1in October of "96 and worked
for them after they changed to
Lodestar Energy, until February of
2003. And I started working for
Crandall Canyon, Genwal, May of 2006
until present.

Q. Okay. And what 1s your
present position?

A . I was a roof bolter at
Crandall Canyon.

Q.- Crandall Canyon. And did you
hold that position, that job, roof
bolter, around August 6th, 2007
before the first accident had
happened?

A I did. I was driving shuttle
car . We wasn"t developing, so I was
driving a shuttle car.

Q.- Okay. And so you*"ve been ---
because 1t wasn®"t --- you weren- "t
developing, you actually had a
different job duty prior ---

A Right.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908
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Q. --- to the accident?
A Right.
MR. BAXTER:

Do you work at Crandall

Canyon now?

MR. BAXTER:

And are you a roof
bolter now or some other job?
A We"re on the surface now, jJust
loading equipment.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. And have you held any other
positions at the mine other than

bolter and shuttle car operator?

A When 1 first started, jJust
outby. That®"s about 1t, so ---.
Q. All right. And do you have

any mining certificates,
certifications?

A Fireboss certificate.

Q. Last working shift prior to
the accident, who was your i1immediate
supervisor?

A . Brandon Kimber.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. Okay. And what was your work
schedule around August 6th? Were you
working that weekend or ---?

A No . We worked --- we were
working Monday through Thursday, so
that Thursday prior to the accident
was my last shift at the mine.

Q.- Okay. So your last shift at
the mine ---. Well, let me just ---
give me a little background on what
the section was like on that last

shift before you left, because 1t was

--- 1t was probably --- what,
Thursday accident, Sunday --- so it
was a few days that passed. But

maybe give me an i1dea of what things
were like. Could you start from the
beginning what you can recall on that
Thursday, what time you got there and
just go through what was happening

and what you did that day?

A. You know, I can"t remember for

sure what shift I was on.

Q. Okay.

A I believe 1t was dayshift, and
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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we were coming back --- we would have
been coming back graveyard on Monday.
But I think the section was fine. We
were pulling pillars. It was falling
behind the MRSs like 1t should be.

No unusual circumstances or bounces
that I can recall.

Q. That you can recall. 1 1
give you a map, can you give me a
general 1dea of where you were
working that day on that section?

And maybe 1t will help you give me a

sense of where things were. 111
bring 1t to you. We"ll put 1t across
the table over here and ---. Do you

recognize this map layout?

ATTORNEY MEANS:

May 1 jJust ask for the
record, 1s this map one of the
ones that was provided by the
company or ---7?

MR. GAUNA:

This 1s a map that was
generated from the AutoCAD

file provided by the company.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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It was printed by MSHA.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Thank you.
A Yeah, we were working 1n this
area right here. We were --- 1 can"t
remember 1f we were actually mining,
but we did a lot of work cribbing 1iIn
this area for the return because they
were going to pull back. We had to
leave these three blocks of pillars.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay. So let me get you
something to mark with here so we can
get --- so I get ---. Could you use
this green marker and show me where
you did the cribbing on that shift,
that Thursday?

A. Yeah. We cribbed the walkway
and both sides there and both sides
here to maintain that.

WITNESS MARKS MAP

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay.
AL And there was cribs here and a

couple there.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q.- Okay. For the record, green
marks placed around the number three
entry at crosscut 141 and crosscut
140 designate the cribs that were
installed. Were they 1i1nstalled
roughly on that Thursday or do you
recall ---7?

A I think Wednesday and Thursday
we Finished up, because we were going
to start mining. And then we were
going to finish --- 1 think we were
going to finish this set of pillars.
And then when we came back on Monday,
we expected the belt to be moved back
past this --- the blocks of pillars
that we were leaving.

Q.- Can you recall on Thursday
where the feeder was set up when you
were working that day, what break,
maybe 1n relationship to where you

marked the cribs?

A I"m trying to think. I think

it was here at 140. The kitchen was

here.

Q. Do you want to, with this pen,
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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just maybe put an X and label 1t

feeder and another X and label it
kitchen?
WITNESS MARKS MAP

MR. BAXTER:

Can we mark that as
Gordon Exhibit One?
(Gordon Exhibit One
marked for
identification.)
A . As far as I can recall, that"s
where ---.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay. For the record, you
marked the feeder just outby crosscut
140 in the number two entry. And vyou
marked the kitchen outby crosscut 140
in the number three entry which was
also labeled on the map. All right.
Let"s see. And at this --- and you
were running the shuttle car?

AL Yes.

Q. Which car were you running?

Do you recall?

A The number eight.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. Was 1t standard, off-standard?
A. Standard.
Q. Standard. And where was 1t

tied off? Can you mark where you had
it tied off at?

WITNESS MARKS MAP

A I changed 1t. But we were
running right here, and |1 was running
down this entry back up around.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q- Go ahead and maybe label that
little mark maybe TO or something for

tied off or whatever you can label

it.

A Okay.

Q. Label TO for tied off point
for a shuttle car. You said you

would run down the number one entry
belt and you"d take --- you®"d run
from the feeder to crosscut 140 1in
the number one entry and take the
number one entry towards the face

depending on where the mining was at?

A. Yes.
Q.- Okay. That gives me a sense
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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for where you were working. Do you

know what pillars you pulled that

shift?

AL No, 1 don"t recall for sure
what --- you know, 1 can®"t recall.
Q. Okay.

AL I can"t recall for sure

what ---

Q. Do you remember --- well, do

you remember 1f you were i1n pillars,
in the barrier or a combination of
both?

A No, I can"t recall that
either. I think we were in the
pillars, but I can®"t recall for sure.
Q. That"s fine.

MR. BAXTER:

Do you know any range
or any ballpark area where you
might have been with the
pillars?

A I can"t remember for sure 1f
we were, you know, up In between two
and three fTinishing that pillar on

that day. I can"t recall for sure.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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BY MR. GAUNA:

Q- Okay. You made mention that
it seemed like normal pillaring
conditions for you. Were there any
areas where you had bounces or you
had any si1tuations where you weren- "t
able to pull the pillar because of
ground conditions that you ---7

A No . It had been good. We "d
been pulling pillars.

Q.- Had you felt In the past on
that section any bounces?

AL There had been bounces, but

nothing drastic.

Q- Nothing ---?

A They were real small.

Q. All right. Since this 1s a
combination --- eastern miners here

and people from eastern areas, just
on the record, can you describe what
a bounce 1s so that we have your
description? Because different

people consider different things

bounces. Some people may call them
bumps. But give me an i1dea of what
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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you consider to be a bounce and their
significance.

A I think --- you know, I think
a bounce 1s a pillar, taking away ---
side of the pillar bursting out into
the entry.

Q- Okay.

A Whether 1t be just a small
amount of coal or a large amount or
just making, you know, noise that way
in the pillar 1tself.

Q. Okay. From your experience

and exposure, you see coal moved and

so forth. What about vibrations and
noise?
A You®"ll hear a pretty good

concussion sometimes, pretty loud
bump.

Q. Okay. What about water? Was
there any water encountered while you
were pulling that portion of the
south barrier?

A No, no. There wasn®"t water
down that end.

Q.- And what about any floor heave

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

24

in the area of where you were
working?

AL Not up here 1n the area where
we were working. There was some back
here 1n the beltline ---

Q. Can you recall ---7°

A --- 130s. You know, 1"m not
sure exactly what break for sure.

Q. Okay. So you would think 1t"s
roughly i1n the 130s?

A Yeah. I"m not sure where.

Q. It would be in the number two
entry?

A. Yeah, number two entry. And

the only reason I"d done that 1s
because I1*"d pre-shifted a couple
times and seen the floor heaved in
that area.

Q. Okay. How severe was the
heave, and could you describe 1t for
me, what 1t looked like, where 1t
was?

A There was coal pushed up
probably some places maybe a foot and

a half high ---

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. Okay.
A. -—-- on the belt structure.
Q. Did it affect the walkway

also? Was 1t jJust in the middle? Do
you know what parts 1t was --- what

parts of the entry i1t might have

been?
A. No, it was --- the walkway was
pretty good. I mean, 1t had to be

shoveled because of some of the loose
coal, but i1t didn"t really heave
there, mostly right in the middle of
the entry.

Q.- Okay. And can you recall how
extensive an area i1t was, how many
either pieces of structure or how

many feet or how many pillars long 1t

was?
A Well, 1t was a couple of
breaks that 1t heaved up, not --- you

know, not continually, but there was

a couple of breaks. It was kind of
spotty.
Q.- For a couple of breaks?
A. Yeah.
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q.- Okay. So It jJust wasn®"t one

piece of structure. It was an area

of several pillars?
AL Uh-huh (yes).
MR. BAXTER:

26

Do you remember roughly

when the heaves were?

AL No, I don"t, because I wasn-™t

regularly traveling, you know, th

beltline. No, 1 don®"t know for sure

when 1t took place.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Was 1t before you started
pillaring or after you started
pillaring?

A . That I don"t know either.

e

I m

not so sure 1FfF I walked that beltline

when we were developing.

Q. Okay. Okay . well, we™"ll

cover more stuff on the section as we

get along. I guess we need to

continue with what happened

throughout August. You were supposed

to come back what shift after you

left then that Thursday? What was

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service,
(814) 536-8908

Inc.
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your next workday supposed to be?

AL Monday graveyard, would have
come 1n at 6:00 p.m.

Q.- And did you come i1n on Monday
at graveyard?

A Yes.

Q.- Okay. Could you describe to
me then what you encountered and what
happened on that day?

A I called up after I had seen
on the news that morning the
incident, and they just said to come
out your regular shift. Come 1n. It
was pretty crazy, because you didn*"t
know exactly what happened and what
went on. So when you kind of got
there, you had to --- went 1In. Kind
of showed you on the map where things

had happened and what they were going

to do, kind of a plan. On that
Monday, you know, 1 think we were
moving --- cleaning the area out at

120, 1 believe, for the feeder.

Q.- Okay. I guess the map goes
that far down. You can make a mark
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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where you think you were working on
that --- this would be like Monday

afternoon or Monday evening when

you ---7?

A Monday evening.

Q.- Monday evening when you came
in. What time do you typically come
in?

A. Shift starts at 6:00 p.m.

Q. Okay.

MR. BAXTER:

Do you remember who
showed you the stuff on the
map?

A What"s that?

MR. BAXTER:

Do you remember who

showed you things on the map?

28

A . Il think --- 1 know --- 1 think
Bodee went over it with us. I"m not
so sure 1if Gary was there. I think

he come and told us kind of what
happened and whatever the plan was.
Duane was already there that day and

Brandy. He was our --- he was the

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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boss.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. 111 tell you what. Maybe
instead of us complicating 1t with
information, just tell us what

happened and we"ll cover the details

later. Just tell us what happened.
A. I think we were cleaning.
Therr 1initial plan, 1 think, was to

go up into the number four entry, and
we had the diesel muckers 1n there.
We were going to set up a feeder at
120. We pulled the power center up
in there between 120 and 121 i1n the
number one entry. After working on
--- you know, we trammed the feeder
from --- 1 can"t remember where we
started from, but we were tramming
the feeder pretty much the whole
shift to get i1t 1In there. We did get
it In there and get 1t in place. The
miner started to clean up a little
bit 1n there around that area. 1
think that was about the end of our

shift.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

30
Q. Okay. And let"s go now 1In a

little more detail then. Go ahead
and mark what you were going to start
with, where you believe the feeder
was being put.

A Okay.

WITNESS MARKS MAP

A . Initially the feeder was
there, 1 belileve. We cleaned up ---
we had to clean up all the belt
structure in here so we could get the
miner turned around. This had been
cleaned. And I didn"t ever walk back
up 1In here, but they had cleaned.
They had those diesel muckers up 1In
this area, cleaned up this area and
put a power center ---.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q.- Okay. That"s good. For the
record, he®"s labeling the power
center in the number one entry
between 121 and 120. Feeder has been
positioned at crosscut --- just outby
crosscut 120 1n the number two entry.

A And that was pretty much that

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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whole shift by the time we got the

feeder 1n there.

Q. Okay. So the feeder had to be
brought from another part of the
mine? Is that ---7

AL Yes. It was outby. I can™t
remember exactly where we started
tramming 1t from.

Q.- Okay. And you basically
started working --- that was your
first duty, was to bring the feeder,
that first part of that ---7

A I think so. I think we all
come up and looked at this area to
see where i1t was going. They were
cleaning up. You know, we had to
move the belt structure and whatnot
before we could even get 1t 1n there
so we had enough room to turn around.
And then we went out and got the
feeder.

Q. And while you were doing that,
you said other people were working
the diesel muckers?

A Yeah. There were still people

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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working up here. I think Brandon and
I --- 1 can"t remember the other two.
I think Carlos Hernandez was there
with us. He was around ---.

MR. BAXTER:

Sorry. Where®"s that
area where they were with the
diesel muckers?

A 120. I think they were up 1In
like three and four entry.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. So they were working inby 120
in the three and four entry while you
were working on the other equipment
in the number two entry?

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q. It was made mention that you
had to go 1n the number two entry for
some distance and clean up what,
structure ---7

A We jJust went --- 1 think we
probably took two sections of
structure out, so probably 20 feet of
belt structure and pulled the belt

out of the way, cut the belt and
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pulled 1t out so we could get the
miner turned around 1n there.
Q.- Could you describe what 1t was

like 1n that entry, what the

conditions were?
A. You know, the ribs were
sloughed off quite a bit. You had a

little bit of walkway right there on
the belt, but very little, | think.
And after that, i1t started to fi1ll up
quite a birt, the entries did, with
coal.

Q.- Just Iinby that place you were
working?

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q.- What about the condition of
the belt structure? What was 1i1ts
condition?

AL It looked fTine. There was
coal on the belt. You could look
down for a ways and you could see 1t
wasn"t twisted or anything like that.
The water line was still there and
intact right there 1In that area.

Q. Were there any broken chains
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or anything like that?

A No . Not that I recall.
Q.- Okay. What time did you
finish your shift on that --- on that

shift? You came in 1n the evening
and ---.

A I would say we probably didn*"t
get outside until 7:30 that next
morning, something like that.

Q. Okay.

AL It seemed like we were --- 1t
was about 14 hours by the time we got
in and got out.

Q- And then did anything happen,
other things out of the ordinary on
that shift that you can recall?

AL Not that 1 can recall.

Q.- Okay. And did you fTinish off
your shift jJust working, you say

somewhere with Brandon?

A Right.

Q- And what area was that again?

A That was just moving the

feeder. When we got the feeder up

here --- by the time we got 1t up
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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there and got 1t set --- 1n fact, |1
think we actually went back to get

shuttle cars in the third north, and

maybe we couldn®"t get them. I can™t
remember why. And we finished our
shift there. So we were back out

there, but we never did work on them.
We couldn®"t get them running ---.

Q- So you left the section, went
to third north, but you never came

back from third north?

A No .

Q. You went outside from there?
A. Right. Uh-huh (yes).

Q. That explains 1t. Could you

also give me a sense of what you did
after that day and through the ---
during the rescue operations? What
were your duties?

A The next day, we come back 1n
and there"d been a bounce that had

covered up that power center at 21

and the miner, the feeder. I think

we worked on getting --- | think they

said put the power back in 119. You
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know, we were --- for the Tfirst
couple days, we were moving equipment
up there and getting 1t ready. After
we had the equipment 1n there, 1 was
putting props in. And until we got
the other --- we were running one
shuttle car, and 1 was jJjust putting
props iIn after they got --- advanced
with the miner and put props. When
we got the other diesel scoops 1in
there, the diesel coal haulers, | was
driving one of those.

Q.- Okay. So you had different
duties that day?

A . Right. And I continued to
help put props up. I bolted a couple
places that had been, you know,
cleaned out and needed to be spot
bolted.

Q. What was your typical shift

and supervisor while you were doing

this --- the rescue work?
A Brandon was my supervisor
throughout the operation. You know,

we worked from that Monday until that
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next Sunday with the same crew. And
then we switched --- you know, we
decided, hey, we got to switch
people. We come back 1n on a

Wednesday was our next shift, would

have been the 5th. And Brandon was
still my supervisor. I think us two
was --- Brandon and I were the only

two on that shift that were the same.
We had a bunch of new people after
they kind of reorganized shifts.

Q. Okay. All right. SO you were
working on Brandon®s shift with him?
A Right.

Q.- Pretty much. Okay. Can you
describe what your Impressions were,
since you were in there all that
time, as far as bounces, bumps, how
the props ---? Just give me a

feeling for what 1t was like 1n

there.
A You know, really 1t bounced
once 1n a while, but not --- 1 guess

after you"re in here pillaring and

you get used to 1t, 1t wasn"t nothing
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out of the ordinary, 1 guess, to me.
It bounced, but i1t really wouldn®™t
throw coal out off the pillar or
anything. It would just, you know,
make some noise.

Q.- Okay. How was the support
responding to what i1t was doing? How
was 1t reacting?

A There was no problems. |
never seen a prop get kicked out or
anything from the bounce.

Q.- Okay. Were you i1nvolved ---
were you ever up there while they
were actually helping the miner
operator with anything when he was
working the machine? Were you
involved 1n any of that?

AL No .

Q. Okay. And when you were
actually going to set the props,
typically where was that miner

positioned when you were setting

props?

A Forward, front. We did 1t a

couple different ways. IT we had to
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bolt, we"d pull the miner clear back
out, put the bolter 1n and bolt and
then use the bolter to set the props,

the hydraulics on the bolter.

Q- Okay.
A A couple different ways just
depending on the situation. IT the

miner was up there, 1t would be
forward of us.

Q.- Okay. How big was the
propping crews when you were up there
working?

A. It was usually fTive to six
people. It"s kind of hard because
there was usually a couple of people
from MSHA and the bosses. So you
know, maybe five to six actual people
working.

Q.- Five to six hands, and the

rest would be supervisory ---

A Right.

Q.- --- and possibly 1nspectors?

A Right.

Q. Okay. That was your typical

crew. Did that change any? Was that
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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kept ---?

AL It was kept about the same.
They didn"t want a lot of people up
in the face, so i1t was kept about
that.

Q. Okay. Okay . Were you working
the day of the 16th, the second
accident?

A I was.

Q. You were. Well, why don"t you
just start with that day and tell us
what happened, to the best of your
recollection?

AL We worked the whole shift. 1
was running the coal hauler the
entire shift. First thing on shift
change that morning, we had to finish
setting props. They had finished

bolting, so the bolter was i1n the

face. We used the bolter to set the
props. Pulled i1t back out. We
actually switched. It was at 125
where 1t was parked. We switched it

and pulled 1t back to 123 so we could

switch our cars out at 125. Pulled
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the miner back 1In the face and

started mining.

We set props again. I"m not
sure what time 1t was. Set props to
120 --- just 1nby 126 barely. And 1

think we"d only set four or five
props on each side to finish up, and
then we hooked our --- the wire rope
that was attached to --- advanced 1t
as far as we had props 1n there.
Continued with, you know, mining.
You could just barely see the corner
of 127 starting to come out. You
could jJust barely see where 1t was
starting to turn that crosscut.
Finished --- I had switched
out, and I was actually switched.
And 1 was back at the feeder. So
habit was jJjust not to go up there
while they were setting props. |
think they only had like four props
set on each side. I went back to the
feeder. The other car came back. |
think 1t was driven by Steve Wilson.

And I switched out and 1 pulled into
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crosscut 125. And 1 hadn"t been ---
you know, 1 think I"d set my brake
and set there and get out and go see
what was taking them so long, because
they should have been done. They
started mining, and that®"s when the
bounce hit.

You know, 1t was just a big
cloud of dust. It was hard to see.

The first person that come out was

Brandy, and 1 can"t remember what his
name 1S. And I don*"t know --- but he
really knew --- he knew i1t had

bounced, but I don®"t know 1f he knew
what happened up 1n the face, because
he really didn"t seem too shaken or
anything. So I thought maybe he was
walking out and 1t bounced and he
just come walking out of the dust. |
told him to get on the phone.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

Was that Brandy did you
say?
A Brandy. Mitch Horton come

running out right after that, says
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they“"re all buried, covered up. And
he was kind of hysterical. Told
Brandy to get on the phone, call

outside and tell them to get some

help. Then Randy Gunnerson
(phonetic), I think that was his last
name, he was on our shift. He came

out and then a company guy from back
east that they had 1n there helping.
And 1"m not sure what his name was.
He come out. And they were saying
that they® 11l all buried, that 1t
caved on them. I grabbed the guy
that --- from back east. He had a
spotter to see how much oxygen we
had, and we headed back 1n there.

I headed 1n. As you got to
the face, the dust wasn"t quite as
bad. Lester Day was standing up.
He*"d been hit by some coal debris.
Checked him and he was okay. Asked
him 1f he could go to the phone. And

he said, no, he couldn"t make 1i1t.

He"d lost his glasses. He couldn™t
see.
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BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Need a break? Okay. We =11
take a break.

OFF RECORD DISCUSSION

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q.- IfT you"re ready, we can go
back on the record and just continue,

as best you can, where you left off.

AL After 1 checked Lester, 1 seen
the others. (b) (7)(C)

(b) (7)(C)

Gary Jensen, he was like --- he was
the first one we come to. He was
alive. Corey --- Casey Metcalf was
(b) (7)(C) . Dale
Black was the next one. He was

®Rr@)JIiC)g the opposite rib

() (MO - I
went farther 1n and checked. The
other MSHA i1nspector was there, and
then Corey, he was down more buried
in the coal, but they were both alert
and alive.

Brandon Kimber was the
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furthest one inby, ®00

(b) (7)(C) . His left arm and
his legs were out. I checked the
pulse. There was no pulse. I ran
back out, called Laine Adair. He was

the one that answered the phone.

Told him that some critical iIinjuries,
possibility two deaths, jJust to let
him know how critical the accident
was . Needed to get help.

After 1 got off the phone, 1
think a couple people from the other
shift showed up, Benny Allred. 1
told him we had to have air up there,
because there was no air. The rag
had been blown down and stoppings.
And that"s kind of how 1 knew 1t was
bad, was the stoppings at 125 when |
was there just --- 1t jJust
disappeared. The wind jJust blew i1t
out like 1t was ---.

Told him we need to get air.
Took a couple guys, and 1 think Mitch
and some of those guys come up and we

started digging. I don"t know how
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many minutes went by. I was digging
on Gary, and then some of the guys
from the other shift showed up.
Luckily there was a shift change and
we had some extra help.

So they started helping me.

We went to work. They pulled Brandon
out, and later 1 heard that Bodee had
done CPR on him on the way out. We

jJust continued to dig them out the
best we could. We had to cut the ---
the props from the other side had
blown out, and they had the fence up.
So they kind of pinned them 1in
between the wire and the props. And
there were props and wire on the
other side, so we had to do a lot of
cutting before we could start digging
by the fence. And we jJust continued
to dig until we got them out. Dale
Black was the last one out.

Q. When Dale left, that"s when

you left?

A I rode out with him.
Q. Were you involved in any
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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debriefing after that?

AL Yeah. You know, we went out
in the shop and everybody was out
there. They had some medical people
check everybody out. I think Mr.
Stricklin was there, talked to us
about what happened. We went up on a
whiteboard, kind of drew a picture of
how 1t looked, where the miner was at
and the props and the props that blew

out, we thought.

Q. You helped with that, ---
A. Yes.
Q. --- marking things, since you

were there? I know this may be very
hard, and 1 can understand 1f 1t"s a
problem, but 1f I showed you a sketch
of the area, could you mark where

people may have been?

AL Yes.
Q- All right. 111 bring 1t to
you.
MR. BAXTER:
That will be Gordon
Two .
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(Gordon Exhibit Two

marked for
identification.)

MR. GAUNA:

For the record, this 1s
a sketch developed by MSHA.
BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. For reference, this 1s like
the top of the muck pile. This 1s
the toe. Like 1 said, take your
time. And 1f you don"t recall,
that"s fine also, because 1 know I™m
asking a lot of you to try and
remember what®"s happened with
something like this.

WITNESS MARKS SKETCH

AL I don"t know 1f --- 1 think
Gary was probably pinned up against
this prop.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay.

A Casey was clear down here, 1n

between. Dale was against that one.

I think the other --- I"m not sure

what his name was. The MSHA
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inspector was right here.

Q. Okay.

AL Corey was here. Brandon was
right here.

Q. Can you ---7°

A And I"m not sure --- you know,
I went 1n and looked at this side
real quick jJust to see, and come
here. I don"t know 1f there was ---
ifT they were to the end of the props.
You know, 1 don"t ---.

Q.- I understand. I understand.
Just so that he understands what you
marked, I"m going to repeat what you
did, so just bear with me for a
moment here.

MR. GAUNA:

This would be Exhibit
Number Two, Phil Gordon. He
labeled 1n order from outby to
inby, that"d be Gary. This
would be Casey. This would be
--- this mark here would be
what?

A . Dale.
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MR. GAUNA:

Dale. Could you write
Dale right there? The next
mark would be the MSHA
inspector who you didn"t know.
And then this would be ---
after that i1nspector, what®s

this mark?

A . Corey.
MR. GAUNA:
Corey and then Brandon,
in that order. Okay.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q- Thank you very much. l"ve got
some follow-up questions, but I think
you ought to take a break. Let"s

take a short break and then just kind
of go back over the stuff you did and
that, what you just told me. So
we"ll give you a chance to take
another break, just a short one.
Whenever you®"re comfortable, come on
back.

SHORT BREAK TAKEN

BY MR. GAUNA:
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Q.- Some follow-up questions based
on what some of my colleagues needed
some clarification on. So I'"m kind
of going back to what we first
started talking about and work our
way to what we were fTinishing with
just now.

A Okay.

Q- When your pillar --- when you
were on the development of the
pillaring, you mentioned a floor
heave around 130, but was there any
floor heave closer to where you
stopped the section that you noticed
when you developed there, when you
may have started the actual pull back
with the pillaring?

A No, not really a heave. I
think up between two and three --- |1
mean, three a little bit, there was
some cracks 1n the floor, but not a
real heave up of loose coal.

Q. Okay. Did those cracks
develop when you were there when you

developed through or did they
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start ---7

A No . I think they started when
we pulled back.

Q.- And that would be the number

two or three entry?

A Yeah.

Q.- Do you recall roughly what
breaks?

AL I don™"t. I don"t recall. You

just notice seeing them as you-re
walking through.

Q. Okay. The cribs, what were
the conditions there that required
the cribbing? Could you recall why
they were being put 1In that place?

A . Just to maintain the bleeder
through that jog there that we had 1In
drop number four because of the works
there.

Q.- Okay. Was that why they
dropped 1t?

A Yeah. They had that old work,
so they didn"t want to take a chance
of breaking 1Into 1t, so they dropped

that and come around. They jJust
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wanted to maintain that bleeder so
they could walk that area.

Q. Okay. So those lines on the
corner to corner, what are those?

A Stoppings.

Q. Stoppings. So that®"s how they
could maintain air flow 1In the

bleeder?

A Correct.

Q. Were they i1n place when your
building ---7?

A Yes.

Q.- Okay. Just about the
pillaring process so I get a sense of

what 1t was like pillaring, cuts per
shift, can you recall how many cuts
or cars you*"d run per shift?

A We were getting --- 1 think
our most cars were 160s to 180s would
be the most 1f we ran them real well
and nothing broke down.

Q.- What would you consider an

average then?

A Oh, 1 think an average would
probably be 140 --- 130 to 140.
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. Were you consistent at that
average, or were there places you had
some bad areas where you were unable
to make that average?

AL No . It was pretty consistent.
Q. And what about the cuts? How
deep were they and how were they
taken? What style --- 1f you want,
you can even sketch 1s on one of
those maps. That map --- maybe the
blowup map might work.

MR. GAUNA:

Is there another
exhibit that shows the details
of the section or was that our
only --- no, that"s 1t. That
would be 1t right there.

A It would depend where you-©re

at. I mean, the first cut --- so 1f
we come back and move to number one,
you know, our first cut would be to

the barrier on this side.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay.
A Our MRS would be here. After
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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we make that cut, we®"ll cut 40 fTeet
and we move the MRSs up and then

we"re cutting back to this side.

Q. Back to that side?
A Uh-huh (yes).
Q. Okay. So those were 40-foot

cuts, as you called them, both
directions?

A Right.

Q. All right. And what about ---
did you leave anything between the

cuts, any coal?

A As far as a stump In between
or ---72

Q. Yeah.

AL We tried not to. We tried to
cut --- sometimes you"d leave a

corner on this bottom end where you
couldn®"t get past the MRSs, but you
tried not to leave stumps where 1t"1l1
start falling good.

Q.- Okay. So that was your
process. And that would be the way
you"d pull 1t 1n all the entries

where you were working the pillars?
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A Correct. Uh-huh (yes). And

then we would move --- when we got
back to the corner here, you know,
we"d pull here and then move our two
MRSs back here and the other two
would be back here 1In this area. And

we"d pull this way on this side.

Q. Okay.

A. And then move our two MRSs up
here when we cut. We moved down here
and ---.

Q. Okay. Just for the record,

"1l jJust describe what you showed
me . You"ve showed that they actually
pulled out of the number one entry
back to the pillar and repositioned
the MRSs and then pull 1In the
crosscut adjacent to that pillar and
then take out the lifts along the
crosscut. And then what would you
do? What would be your next
sequence?

AL The MRSs would come to here.
These two MRSs would be here. And

we"d jJust continue the same way,
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first cut to the left, move all the

MRSs up and cut to the right.

Q.- For the record, MRSs would be
moved to the number two entry.
They*"d go up to the gob line for two
MRSs . The other two would stay 1n
the outby crosscut, and then they~"d
mine left and right on the way back
to the iIntersection.

MR. BAXTER:

Is that right?
AL Yes.
BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. And how would you take 1t 1in
the third entry?

AL The same --- see, after we™"d
finished here, we"d move these MRSs
to here. You know, we®"d pull a final
here and then you would move back.
Our power was down this entry, so ---
I"m not saying that we went through
here, but ---.

Q. Yeah. I*m not --- up 1n the
actual working area?

AL Correct. We did the same
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thing. These two MRSs would come to

here.
here.
this
then
Move

your

These two would be coming to
And we*"d pull this 1li1ift and
lift, move our MRSs to here and

come and cut your lifts here.
your MRSs to here and then pull
final one.

MR. GAUNA:

Okay. So for the
record, Phil showed me that
they take their MRSs and
position them to where they
pull 1n the crosscut i1nto the
pillar that®"s being mined from
the crosscut number two to
number three entry. And they
positioned the MRS. It would
be positioned inby, and they
just pull only to the left
side and pull that pillar down
to complete mining the two
pillars.

And also for the
record, that the marks he made

at crosscut 142 to 140
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represent that they would
typically be inby 142 and does
not represent the mining done
in that area.

MR. BAXTER:

Is that right?
A Yes, that"s --- yes.
BY MR. GAUNA:
Q. Okay. This 1s a question ---
do you remember where you were
pulling in your last week that you
worked, what break you worked in that

last week?

A . l can™t

recall

that for sure.

I think you asked that before, and 1

can®"t recall

know, 1

exactly what break.

think the feeder was at 140,

so we were probably pulling 142, 143

or 144, somewhere 1n that area. But
you know, 1 can®"t recall.
Q.- Now, let"s move back up away

from the face a

something comes up

they pass to me.

little bit unless
in these notes

When you checked

--- when you did the pre-shift and

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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noticed the floor heave on the belt,
did you put 1t 1in the pre-shift book?
AL I didn"t because 1t°"d been ---
previous to that I*"d asked the
supervisor and i1t hadn®"t been on
there before. The walkway was clear.
The belt structure was clear. You

know, there was no hazard.

Q.- You didn®"t consider 1t a
hazard?

A Correct.

Q.- All right.

MR. BAXTER:

Do you remember who you

asked about this?

A . Duane. He said 1t"d been
there for a while. And 1 checked the
books --- 1f 1 would go do a

pre-shift, 1"d check the books to
see, you know, 1f there®s any
conditions in there previously. So
there hadn®"t been.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Now 1 guess we"ll move back to

where we did the rescue recovery.
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The first shift back on the --- this
would be the evening of the 6th when
you fTirst came back and found out
about 1t, 1 forgot to ask you, what
was 1t --- was 1t working? Was i1t
noisy? Can you describe what the
conditions were like?

AL I wasn®"t up In this area the
whole shift. You know, 1 think 1t
was maybe popping a little, no real
big bounces that I can recall. You
know, I can®"t recall any activity to
speak of that was 1n there.

Q.- Okay. Can you recall maybe

how far outby the pillar damage went

61

from ---- because you were working 1in

the 120 area. Was there pillar
damage outby 1207 Can you recall
what the extent was?

A No . It Just started --- 1t

looked like 1t jJust started like at

120 and went 1n, because there really

wasn"t any --- unless they"d --- vyou
know, they"d been there a shift, so

they may have cleaned up some. But
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the ribs looked fine. They hadn™t

done any extra bolting or anything on
the sides, and the top looked good.
The ribs looked the same. You know,
it was dusty, so I just guessed that
nothing happened outby that area.

Q. Okay. The other thing you
mentioned is that you occasionally
ran the roof bolter 1n the number one
entry during the rescue. Can you
give me an i1dea of what the roof
conditions were like? How did 1t
drill? Did you find anything unusual

when you were bolting?

A No . I think 1 only bolted one
40-foot place, and i1t was fine. We
jJust put Ffive-foot bolts 1n. There
was no slips. And I think, you know,
the bolts were --- most of the bolts
were still iIntact. The only bolts
that were --- the plates that were

gone 1s 1f there was top coal that
would have shifted over and tore
plates off. Just rebolted that and

put screen up to hold 1t up.
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Q. Okay. So the roof remained
competent even though --- 1 guess you
talked --- made a reference to the

fact that you noticed that something
had done something to the bolts.

Could you elaborate that a little

bit?
A I mean, 1t looked --- the roof
bolts, probably two or three --- at

least two and sometimes three rose
out 1nto the entry. They were just
--- there was loose coal, top coal
where 1t sheared that coal off. It
looks like that whole barrier on the
left si1de just shifted over. And 1t
looked like that when we were, you
know, rehabbing and mining. It
looked like you were just mining a
regular coal face on that side
because 1t wasn"t real loose coal.
But it jJust bent the bolts. I mean,
the bolts would be this far out.
They"d just be bent straight over
against the top.

Q. Okay. So that was obvious to
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you. Okay. I guess | have one other
question about the rescue work. Can
you recall 1nstances even though ---
since you were running the car, where
the continuous miner actually got

covered up by coal coming off?

A. No . I don"t think that ever
happened that I can recall.
Q.- I*d like to know, maybe since

you®"ve been there, you say, since May
of 2006, what were they doing on
these sections at that time when you
first arrived?

A You know, 1 worked outby for a
couple weeks. But I came into the
main south section where they were
pulling pillars and I worked i1n there
most of the time until we were done
with that section.

Q. Okay.

A August of last year, you know,
they changed our shift and changed
crews around and everything. So 1
went on a different crew, but 1

continued ---.
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Q- So you"re familiar with what
they call the south main pillaring?
AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q. Were you involved with all of

it, or can you recall what portion of

it?

A I can recall a portion of 1t.
Q.- Roughly would you say half of
it or ---7

A No . Probably the last eight

breaks.

Q. Okay.

AL You know, and we were --- 1t

was quite a bit wider section, so it
took us quite a while to pull out of
there. But 1 worked 1n there.

Q.- Give me an i1dea of what those
pillar conditions were like and then
--- because I"m going to take you
through historically how 1t compared
to the rest. SO Just give me a sense
of what you considered to be south
main normal and we®"ll work our way on
to the rest of your experience.

A . You know, there was no ---
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there was never, ever any big bounces
that I can remember that shot coal
out or that you even had to worry
about. You know, when I first
started in there, Casey Allred was
the boss that I worked for, faceboss.
And he went over the section pretty
good and showed me the plans so 1
knew what was going on. And he never
indicated there was any problems 1n
there as far as safety, ribs blowing
out, any of the guys were working 1n
there. And as long as I worked 1n
there, there was never any big rib

blowout or any floor heave that |1

seen.
Q. Okay.

A It was pretty quiet, pretty
good conditions, 1 think, so ---.
Q- Okay. So do you recall what

--- where the section where your crew
would have gone after they fTinished
that pillaring work?

A When we left the south mains,

we went to this north section.
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Q. Okay. The north barrier.

Tell me what 1t was like on
development. How did 1t react? What
conditions did you encounter while

you were driving i1t?

A . You know, we hit some water
out here. Il can"t remember what
crosscut 1t was. We hit water for

quite a ways there, helping them get
through 1t. The top was bad for a
couple feet and we had to --- we took
a lot of shortcuts 1n there 1in

certain areas and just hit and miss,

I think. And I can"t recall what
crosscuts that would be at. And we
were using --- 1 think we were using
five-foot bolts. We went to some

six-foot bolts for a couple of breaks
where you had to get higher on the
top.

Q.- So did you notice any TfTloor

heave on development?

A I think the same --- on

development, no. No .

Q.- Okay. And on development, you
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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primarily would use a five-foot bolt
and then ---7

A Primarily, yes, unless we ---
we had places where we had six, and
we actually had eitght-footers, too,
in case we needed them.

Q.- Okay. How many bolts across
did you typically bolt?

A. Six.

Q.- SIX across. Okay. Let"s see.
How about norses? Any bump activity,
any working ground, anything on
development?

A Development, no. Not that |1
can remember.

Q. Tell me a little bit about
your pillaring, because 1t looks like

they“"ve got two months of pillaring

there. What were the conditions
like?

AL When we first started, 1t was
good. I think that --- 1 can"t
remember where 1t was at. One of the

crews kind of left a little more

stump than you should, and I think
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we, at times, had a couple of breaks

that wouldn®"t fall, and then all of a

sudden 1t would fall. So the roof
was kind of hanging up. But most of
the time 1t was fine. It wasn"t, you

know, big bounces until we got, you
know, back here a little farther.

Q.- Okay. So you got bounce
activity as you came outby?

A Right.

Q.- Okay. Can you recall what was
going on back i1n this break 138, 137
in the time frame when you®"re pulling
the pillars?

A . I know that on one shift, and
I can"t remember how many days or
what 1t was before we started pulling
out, but we had a pretty good bounce
that put some coal out 1In the
crosscuts, you know, a foot, foot and
a half deep. It was a fairly good,
good bounce. It blew some coal out.
I know 1t broke some timbers 1n the
number two entry, | believe. And 1

can"t remember 1f we kept mining
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after that or 1f we started --- 1
know 1t was right after that that we

started pulling out.

Q.- Roughly what break number, can
you recall, 1in the number two entry?
A I can"t recall for sure. 1
can"t remember. I can"t remember

what time frame for sure.

Q. Okay. The maps show a jump 1In
the pillars. Were you on the section
when --- or your crew working when

they shifted their mining from 137 to
1357

AL I can"t recall 1f we came back
--- 1t seems like we were mining up
here when the last bounce happened
that we were --- that we seen. See,

I think we were off and then come

back here, 1 think.

Q. Okay.

AL I can"t recall for sure,

but ---.

Q.- Okay. Just ---.

A It seems like we were mining

--- after we skipped those two
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pillars, we were mining and then 1t
bounced. And 1 can"t recall for
sure, but 1 think there was one other
shift after us and then we come back
the next day. And that"s when they
started moving equipment out.

Q- Okay. So could you put a mark
where you think where you might have
been --- 1 guess you got the pens
over there, where the mining was at

when you had a bounce, or can you

recall?

A I think we were mining up 1n
this area. I can"t recall 1f we were
--- yeah, I think we were, because |1

had to clean up this crosscut to be
able to get my ---.

Q. Okay . Go ahead and mark ---

jJust put a mark and just say, forking

area. Just put a big circle, 1f you
could. You could use one of those
highlighters to show the area.

MR. GAUNA:

And for the record,

Phil"s showing with the red
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highlighter an area where they
were working 1n the 135 to 134
-—-- 1In the number three entry
between crosscut 135 and 134.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

And what was the
significance of when you were
working there?

A . Just a bounce. I mean, that"s
--- and 1t was shortly after that
that we pulled equipment out and
started down here.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Can you give me an i1dea of
just how significant that was? How
much material was moved by the
bounce?

A You know, 1 don"t know. |
know the ribs just blew out, and 1t
was --- there was probably a foot of
loose coal on the floors when 1t blew
out. You know, the top was fine. It

was jJjust the ribs that kind of fell

in. You know, the timbers --- 1
think down 1n this area --- because
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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we were driving from the feeder. 1
can"t remember where 1t was at. But
there was a row of timbers here. You
know, there was a row of timbers
here, but we were getting ready ---

we always had that row of timbers on

that side. Some of those were
broken.

Q.- So we"re talking about you had
breaker --- a breaker row you©"re

talking about?

A Not a breaker row, but jJust a
row ---.
Q.- Go ahead and circle the area

where the timbers were.

A They were here. You know, we
had this row of timbers to protect
the miner operator when he was
cutting to this side. And then as we
cut this side, we"d remove those
timbers.

Q.- Okay. Could you label them as
timber row?

MR. GAUNA:

And for the record,
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Phil 1s showing that they had

a timber row in the number two
entry on the north right-hand
side between crosscut 134 and
133 that was put 1n to protect
the area while they took
lifts, and would be removed
when they took the lifts
towards those timbers.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

Is all of that correct?
AL Yeah. And the area for sure
--- 1 mean, 1t might have been here.
You know, but 1t --- we had that row
of timbers 1n there, and that®"s what
I think --- 1t broke those timbers,
and I think that was ---.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q- Was there any --- the miner,
was 1t --- the area that bounced, 1s
that what you highlighted 1n red 1s
the area that bounced or where the
miner was?

AL I think where the miner was.

That was where we were working.
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Q.- And can you recall what pillar
blew that would have affected that
area?

AL You know, I think that --- |1
think these crosscuts kind of blew

out here.

Q- Could you mark that with an
orange --- with a green maker, excuse
me? Here"s the green one. That way

I wouldn®"t get 1t confused with the
--- that"s where the miner ---. The
red, for the record, 1s where the
miner was, and the green 1s where the
pillar showed a bump, the pillar
lines showed a bump.

WITNESS MARKS DOCUMENT

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. And for the record, they"re
shown to be at crosscut 134 at the
crosscut entries between one and two
and between two and three.

AL It bounced here, too. I mean,
it was all those couple of breaks
right there.

Q.- Okay. It also shows that they
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had bouncing 1n the number two entry
between crosscut 134 and 133.

A And I think that was just the
one bounce that I remember 1n there

that 1t threw those timbers out and

the coal out. And that had been our
first --- you know, i1t had bounced
before. You know, 1t really hadn™t

fallen very well, and we kind of

figured that"s why. And that was a
big --- a pretty good bounce.
Q.- Was there any equipment away

from the miner covered up?
AL No .
Q. Okay.

MR. BAXTER:

Were the stoppings all
down there?
A Maybe a couple. Il can™t
remember. Probably only a couple of
stoppings that we had to prepare.
BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. And do you recall whether they
--- where they might have been with

respect to where the miner was?
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A They were outby the miner, you
know, on this return row right here.
Q.- They would have been outby
crosscut 134 and in the number four
entry. Is that what you i1indicated?
AL Yeah. As best as I can
recall, that would be the area.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

For clarification, your
guestion a moment ago was, was
there any equipment outby the
miner that was covered up?

Was the miner covered up?
A Not that I can remember. 1
don"t remember the miner being
covered up.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Anything else you can recall
about where equipment or whether it
was damaged at that time?

A No . I mean, there was no
equipment damaged. There was no ---.
It Just wasn™"t ---.

Q.- Okay. And you don*"t recall

what day that might have been iIn your
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cycle?
A I don"t recall. I know we
came back the next day and started
moving equipment out.
Q.- Who was your foreman that
shift that 1t happened?
A Duane Gilbert.
Q.- Duane Gilbert. And you guys

pretty much stayed with the same

foreman or did you ---7

AL Same foreman.

Q. Same foreman most of the ---
okay. So this was Mr. Gilbert-"s
crew. Okay. So that takes care of
what happened 1In the north. Did they

discuss with you why they decided to
abandon the pillaring Iin the north?
Was there any meetings or anything
done at the mine?

AL Yeah. I think they just told
us that, you know, the conditions,
they didn"t want anybody hurt and
they were going to pull out.

Q.- Okay. Where did you go next

after you pulled out of the north?
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Did you have any --- did you

immediately mine somewhere or

did ---?
A No, no. We pulled the belt
structure drives out. Had to do a

lot of work down here going to the
south so we could get that section
off before we ever --- 1| can"t
remember 1f 1t was a week or two
weeks before we ever ---.

Q- So your crew was basically put
into setup mode?

A Right.

Q. Okay. And then after setup
mode, were you involved with

development then of the south barrier

block?
AL Yes.
Q. Okay. Well, tell me what

those conditions were like and how

did 1t develop.

A. It was fine. The top was
good. You know, i1t --- we had no
problems. It was good. I know that
we hit --- 1 can®"t remember what
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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breaks 1t was, but we did hit some
bad top out towards the end of the
section. So we were taking some
shortcuts.

Q. In the area that"s already
been pillared, In that section?

A Right. Uh-huh (yes). During
development.

Q. On development?

A Right. We were taking some
shortcuts to keep the top up, get 1In
and bolt 1t.

Q. How did the ground --- 1 don-"t
want to say ground, | guess, the rib
look and floor on that south barrier
development compare to the ribs that
you had on the north barrier
development and the roof? Was there
any difference 1n what 1t appeared to
you?

A No, not really. I mean, 1t
was pretty similar to both sections.
The ribs looked a lot alike, fTloor.
Q.- How about the travel ways?

Well, let me get this straight. |
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know where the travel way was in the
south barrier. Where was the travel
way Into the section in the north
barrier? What entry was that 1n?
A . Let"s see. We turned at the

seals and then we®"d come back, double

doors ---.

Q. Oh, so there wasn®"t a straight
shot? You had to go through ---7?

A We had to come back up here

through doors and ---.

Q. Okay. So ---.
A. And then travel ---.
Q.- Up when you®"re actually on

development away from the setup room
area, what entry was the travel way
in going up the actual area of

development?

AL Number two.

Q. Number two?

AL Uh-huh (yes).

Q.- Okay. I wasn"t aware of that.

So that was the entry normally
traveled there. And number one was

the entry you traveled 1n the south?
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A . Yes.

Q.- So they weren®"t necessarily
the same type of situation?
A Right.

ATTORNEY MEANS:

So can 1 just clarify?
Number two was the travel way
in the north barrier. Where
was the belt?
AL In number three. And number
two was kept open for a travel way.
We put our supplies and stuff on that
entry.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay. Let me see 1f 1"ve ---
my colleagues have any questions.
Let"s take a short break and we®"llI
see 1f they have anything.

SHORT BREAK TAKEN

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Not too much left here. 1-d
like to cover some more production
questions on --- 1 guess on the south
barrier. Could you give me a sense

for how wide these cuts were when

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

they went in, how many cars per cut

it would take to take the cut?

A Probably ten --- ten cars
maybe.
Q. Ten cars for that cut line.

Miner head width cut?

AL Miner head width.

Q. Okay. And was bottom coal
taken when they made the cut?

AL Yeah. Usually they®d cut 1in
ways and then back up and run down,
make sure they get ---.

Q.- Okay. So that®"s why there-®s
ten cars per cut. All right.

MR. BAXTER:

Do you know how much

bottom coal would be taken?

AL There was only a few feet, |1
think. You know, we ran down three
feet maybe. It was kind of hard to

tell because 1t all sloped down to

the left anyway. But I think there

83

was 12 feet of coal or something like

that.
BY MR. GAUNA:
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Q.- Did you notice when you were
pillaring there 1in the south barrier
block prior to the accident, were
there any pillars that had --- were
separated from the roof, you know, on
the pillar line?

A Repeat that.

Q.- Was there an air gap above the

pillars, ---

AL Oh, no.

Q. --- above the pillar?

AL Nothing you could see, no.

Q.- All right.

A . Not that 1 ever noticed.

Q- On that Thursday that ---
where you left on that --- your last

workweek there, how far were they or
how much time was i1t before they™d
have to make another section, feeder

move, power move?

AL We were getting close, because
they had to --- I mean, they were
skipping these blocks of coal. We

were mining on this side where they

were skipping those three blocks, so

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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we were trying to get 1t mined so we
could --- so they"d have to move. So
you know, 1 can"t remember 1f i1t was
just the shift after or two shifts
before they were done and had to move
back.

Q.- Okay. Did anybody explain to
you Or your crew why they were
leaving the blocks?

AL Yeah. Brandon. I mean, |
think he showed us on a map why they
were leaving those, to keep that
walkway through there 1In that area.
Q.- Okay. Let"s see. Oh, this 1s
also a production question. The
production area you mined, was it
marked up anywhere each shift by the
section foreman? Were you aware of

whether that was done?

A How do you mean marked up?
Q- Shown where they mined that
shift. How®"s that reported or how"s

that shown?

A On the map?
Q. Yeah.
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A. Yeah, 1t was shown on the map.
It was marked up on the map.

Q.- And where would this map be?
AL Usually outside. And then the
boss, Brandon, he®"d have one and show
us.

Q.- In other words, showed what
you produced that shift on the map?
A Yeah. Show what was --- how
it was when we got In there so we
knew where we were at.

Q.- Okay. And that was placed
outside at what location? Was there
a standard location for that map?

AL Yeah. It was outside 1n the
area where we come and meet every
morning.

Q. I*"m not familiar --- 1 jJust

know the mine has an underground

change house. Is that what you mean?
A Yeah, 1t"s 1n there.

Q. In there. Because that"s ---
I"m not used to that. Normally
they"re outside. But yours was 1in

the portal area?

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

87
A Right.

Q- Okay.
ATTORNEY MEANS:

For clarification, the
map showed where you were

starting, basically?

AL It Just showed --- yeah, 1t
just showed how 1t was. It was
usually marked up. And depending on

how the shift was, sometimes we
switched out and sometimes they were
gone before we got there. So when we
came 1n on dayshift, afternoon shift
was gone, graveyard was gone and 1t
was marked up. So any other time,
they*d usually call out and then mark
up the map and show us.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay. That"s how the foremen

kept track of where they were i1s ---

A Yeah.
Q.- --- that mark up map 1n the
portal? Let"s see. Were there any

cuts taken 1n this north area, 1In the

north mining area out of the barrier?

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A. No . We left that pillar on

the right side 1ntact and then we cut
into the barrier.

Q.- All right. At the time of
this --- 1 need to clarify this,
where you showed 1n the red where the
miner was, where the bump was at the
crosscut, crosscut 135, 1s that ---
were you on that shift when that
happened?

AL It bounced on the shift we
were working. It bounced when we
were there.

Q.- Okay. And you made mention
that nothing was covered up then, but
did you hear of any other equipment
being covered up on that north end at
any other time?

A No, I can®"t recall that, you
know, when we got back i1n there, that
it covered anything up.

Q. Okay. When the bounce
occurred there, where was everybody
situated? The miner was working the

number three entry as shown by the
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red circle. Where were the other
people?

A. The other car was running up
the number three entry. I was
running two entry. We were only
running the two cars. You know, we
had three others, the miner --- the

miner operator, the boss and one
other person in there. He would have
been cleaning the feeder or ---.
Q. The MRSs, where were they
positioned, roughly, 1n the scenario?
AL You had two MRSs i1n three, and
the other two i1n this area.
Q. Okay.

MR. GAUNA:

For the record, Phil"s
showing that MRSs would be 1n
the number three entry at
crosscut 135 --- two would be
there, and two more MRSs would
be Iin the number three entry
at crosscut 134 i1n the break
that goes off to the south to

the left.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Is that correct?

AL I"m not sure. I can"t recall
exactly where --- 1f 1 was driving
this one --- you know, 1t might have

been one more break back fTarther.

Q.- Where you actually had your
shuttle car route?

A Yeah, yeah. That"s the thing
that I can"t remember for sure.

Q.- But the MRSs may have --- and
you may have been running in the
number two entry but coming across
--- would be coming across outby the

MRSs to go to the miner?

A Right.
Q. The facemen, they weren"t at
the MRSs. They were --- do you

recall where they may have been?

90

A The facemen?

Q. Or the people that operate the
MRSs .

A We would not move the MRSs.

We"d use the miner, miner operator.

I mean, we®"d all go up to the face,

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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pull the equipment back, pull the

cable, pull the water hose and then
move the MRSs.
Q- Oh, so you would be operating

like a three-man production crew?

A We had five people plus the
boss.
Q.- Five people plus the boss.

MR. BAXTER:

Do you remember who
those people were the day it
bounced?

AL Carlos Hernandez, Carlos
Rodriguez, Rodrigo Rodriguez, Ignazio
Manzo and then myself and Brandon
would have been there.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay.
A . I"m sure that ---.

MR. BAXTER:

And what did you do
right after 1t bounced?
AL You know, I can"t remember 1f
it was toward the end of the shift or

what we did. I think we cleaned up,

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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and I can"t remember 1f we started
--- kept mining or not. Il can™t
remember.

MR. BAXTER:

Do you know about how
long 1t would have taken you

to clean up?

A No, I can"t remember that,
either. It seems like Gary came 1in
and looked at i1t. You know, 1 just

can"t remember what we did for sure.

MR. BAXTER:

Do you think 1t would

take a couple hours to clean

it up?
A I*"m sure 1t probably would
have, yeah. I know we had the scoop.
We had to get the scoop out. That~"s
why 1 don*"t even know 1f we actually
mined that day. I can"t remember 1f

we continued to mine or not.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Q. Okay. I guess next after you
left --- did you work on any of the

seals Iin that area after you came out
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of the north and before --- or maybe
you can ---. Do you recall when the

seals were constructed?

A . I do.
Q. Okay.
A . Not timewise. But I mean, 1

worked on the seals.
Q- What type of time frame did 1t

take to put In the seals? And we"re

talking about --- what seals are we
talking about? lIt*d be ---.

A These fTour.

Q.- These four that would be at

crosscut 118, 119, but 1t would be
the four northern most seals that
would be across the development of
the north barrier?

A Yeah.

Q.- Do you know roughly how long
that took?

A It seemed like 1t took --- you
know, by the time we got everything
pulled out of there, 1t was a couple
of weeks. We were working, rehabbing

and getting stuff ready down here.

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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We had to pull out all this --- the

belt drives and everything here and
set belt drives up down here. You
know, I think they had to actually
wait for the plan to get approved and
then they started working on the
seals. They got the stuff in there,
you know, and they came in and pumped
the seals. It took us probably a
couple weeks to complete that.

Q. Okay. So 1t wasn®"t a quick
process?

A No .

Q. But that was all done while
you prepped to go into the south
barrier?

A Right. We tried to get
everything done down here.

Q.- The conditions you had on the
north on the pillar, you know, 1t
bumped and you had to leave the
north, were there concerns or
discussions or anything among the
crews as to why --- or why 1t may not

happen 1n the south or maybe 1t would
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happen? Could you give me a sense of
what your thoughts are on that?

A I don®"t recall any --- you
know, being told that 1t wouldn~"t
happen or 1t would happen or there
was a chance 1t would happen or a
chance 1t wouldn®"t happen. You know,
I Just --- | guess you kind of take
their word that they have an approved
plan, so 1it"s safe, and you know,
they“"ve looked at all the options.
You know, once we started getting
back here farther, you know, and the
cover started to get higher, Gary
would tell us i1n the morning, hey,
you know, we"re getting a little
higher cover, just to remind you, you

know, be careful, watch what®"s going

on.
Q. Okay. The crew didn"t share
any concerns about --- since they had

that experience 1n the north, or was
there any discussions?
A. No, not that I can --- not

that I can recall that there was
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anything. You know, 1 mean, they

would let you know 1f 1t bounced or

ifT 1t was --- things that they seen
with the bad top or what. I mean,
they would tell you. But I can"t

recall anybody saying that, you know,
it"s going to be the same or not the
same as the other section.

Q. Let me see.

MR. GAUNA:

Are there any more
questions? Okay. I guess we
can start the closing then.

MR. BAXTER:

You want to ask about
the annual retraining?

MR. GAUNA:

Oh, that®"s right.

MR. BAXTER:

l"ve done this too many
times.

MR. GAUNA:

You"re keeping track, 1
see.

BY MR. GAUNA:

Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

97

Q. Okay. Do you recall when you
had your last annual retraining?
A The date for sure, no. It was

here at College of Eastern Utah.

Q.- Okay. Would 1t have been this
year or ---7

A. I think 1t was December.

Q.- Okay. And would they cover

--- did they cover the vent plan and
roof control plan?

A Yeah. They covered all the
plans with us.

Q. Okay. I have some more
questions. Have you given a written
statement or an i1nterview to any
management official or outside
organization before this i1nterview
regarding the accident?

AL No .

Q.- Okay. Has anyone offered you
anything or made any promise to you
in exchange for you to appear or not

to appear here today?

A. No .
Q.- And do you have anything you
Sargent®s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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would like to add that may be

relevant to this i1investigation that

you want to share with us?

A . Il don"t think so. I think we
covered --- 1 guess the biggest
reason I wanted to tell what I knew

of what happened that day right
there, so ---. We were putting props
and we were doing 1t the same way
we"ve been doing 1t the whole time.
It was Just a bad accident.
Q. Okay. I appreciate that.

MR. GAUNA:

I"m going to close
here. On behalf of MSHA, 1
want to thank you for
appearing and answering
questions today. Your
cooperation IS very iImportant
to the 1nvestigation as we
work to determine the cause or
causes of the accident.

We ask that you not
discuss your testimony with

anyone who may have already
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been 1nterviewed or may be
interviewed in the future.
This will ensure that we
obtain everyone®s independent
recollection of the events
that occurred concerning the
accident.

After questioning other
witnesses, we may call you if
we have any fTollow-up
questions that we feel that we
may need to ask you. IT at
any time you have additional
information regarding the
accident that you would like
to provide to us, please
contact us at the contact
information |1 gave you on that
card that was previously
provided to you.

The Mine Act provides
certain protections to miners
who provide information to
MSHA, and as a result, are

treated adversely. IT at any
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time you believe that you have
been treated unfairly because
of your cooperation in this
investigation, you should
notify --- 1Immediately notify
MSHA .

IT you wish, you may
now go back over any answer
that you have given during the
interview and you may also
make any other statement that

you would like to make at this

time.
A . No, I have none.
MR. GAUNA:
Okay. I thank you
again. Thanks for coming 1n.

*x * * * X X X *

STATEMENT CONCLUDED AT 11:41 A.M.

*x * * @ * X X X *
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